
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 26 October 2017 

 Page 1 

Scrutiny Committee 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services Officer 
Telephone number 01235 422524 
Email: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 18 October 2017 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Scrutiny Committee 

will be held on Thursday, 26 October 2017 at 7.00 pm  
Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 
 

Members of the Committee: 
 
Councillors  
Debby Hallett (Chairman) Mohinder Kainth 
Alice Badcock (Vice-chairman)  Sandy Lovatt 
Mike Badcock 
Edward Blagrove 
Vicky Jenkins 

Chris Palmer 
Judy Roberts 

  
Preferred Substitutes 
 
Yvonne Constance Ben Mabbett  
StJohn Dickson  Chris McCarthy 
Dudley Hoddinott 
Simon Howell 

Emily Smith 
Reg Waite 

Monica Lovatt 
 

Catherine Webber 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
Margaret Reed 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 26 October 2017 

 Page 2 

 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 
Council's Vision  
 

The council’s vision is to take care of your interests across the Vale with enterprise, energy 
and efficiency. 
   

1. Apologies for absence  
   
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 4 - 12)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting held on 
20th and 28th September (attached).   
 

3. Declarations of interest  
   
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.    
 

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements  
   
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and to 
receive any announcements from the chairman.   
 

5. Public participation  
   
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.   
 
 
REPORTS AND ISSUES FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

6. New leisure centre for Wantage and Grove area  
(Pages 13 - 22)  
  
To consider the report of the interim head of waste, leisure and environmental health 
(attached). 
 



Vale of White Horse District Council 
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 26 October 2017 

 Page 3 

7. Oxford to Cambridge Expressway: Vale options  
(Pages 23 - 34)  
  
To consider the report of the head of planning services (attached). 
 

8. Appointment of task group  
(Page 35)  
  
To consider appointing a task group. 
 
A task group scoping document is attached. 
 

9. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings  
(Pages 36 - 39)  
  
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are confirmed, the 
items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or rearranged without further 
notice. 
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Wednesday, 20 September 2017  Sc.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

held on Wednesday, 20 September 2017 at 7.00 pm 
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present:  
 
Members: Councillors Debby Hallett (Chairman), Alice Badcock (Vice-Chairman), Mike 
Badcock, Ed Blagrove, Vicky Jenkins, Mohinder Kainth, Chris Palmer and Judy Roberts.   
 

Officers: Adrian Duffield, Andrew Maxted and Ron Schrieber 
 
Also present: Councillors Roger Cox and Emily Smith 
 
 

Sc.10 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillor Sandy Lovatt submitted apologies. 
 

Sc.11 Declarations of interest  
 
None. 
 

Sc.12 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  
 
None. 
 

Sc.13 Public participation  
 
One member of the public had registered to speak on the Local Plan Part 2 (see Minute 14 
below). 
 

Sc.14 Publication Version - Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed 
Policies and Additional Sites  

 
The committee considered the report of the head of planning services which provided an 
overview of the main changes proposed to the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 following 
consultation.  An addendum report setting out a number of proposed further amendments 
had been circulated. This reflected ongoing work including collaborative working with key 
stakeholders such as Oxfordshire County Council. 
 
Councillor Roger Cox, Cabinet member for planning, introduced the report. Also present to 
answer questions were Adrian Duffield, head of planning services and Andrew Maxted, 
planning policy project lead. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Wednesday, 20 September 2017  Sc.2 

 
Councillor Cox reported that it was the Council’s intention to submit the Local Plan to the 
Secretary of State at the end of February 2018. As set out in the Council’s Local 
Development Scheme, it was anticipated that the Local Plan would be examined in the 
summer of 2018 with adoption before the end of the year. 
 
Jon Alsop, representing a landowner, addressed the committee regarding the removal of 
the proposed development at North-East Marcham. His points included: 

 The development was in a sustainable location; 

 Neighbouring sites had been granted planning permission; 

 The site related well to the existing built up area of Marcham; and 

 There was a lack of supporting evidence to justify the removal of the proposed 
development from the Local Plan. 

 
In response to these comments, the Cabinet member and officers stated that the removal 
of the proposed development was in response to an objection raised by Oxfordshire 
County Council due to the site’s proximity to an Air Quality Management Area within 
Marcham and the potential detrimental impact from development. 
 
Councillor Emily Smith addressed the committee. Her points included: 

 Whether the figures for Oxford City’s unmet housing need should be revised 
downwards in the light of the recent Government White Paper; 

 The transport infrastructure was inadequate to support the proposed Dalton 
Barracks development; and  

 The proposed Lodge Hill Park and Ride was currently unfunded, was a low priority 
for the County Council and would not be operational before 2026. However, once 
operational, it would encourage commuters to drive to and from the Park and Ride 
rather than use public transport. 

 
In response to these comments, the Cabinet member and officers stated that: 

 The Government White Paper was a consultation document with any proposals to 
be published in the Spring.  At this stage, there was no evidence to justify amending 
the figures for Oxford City’s unmet housing need; 

 The Local Plan was a strategic document.  Details of supporting infrastructure, 
including traffic management measures, for Dalton Barracks and other sites would 
be considered as part of any planning application and S106 agreement; and 

 The main public transport links for the Dalton Barracks development would be via 
the existing bus services. 

 
The committee considered the report, addendum and supporting documents. In response 
to members’ questions, the Cabinet member and officers stated that: 

 Government guidance was that local authorities currently progressing their Local 
Plans should continue rather than delay.  Even if the figures for unmet housing 
need were to change in the future, it would be preferable to go to the Examination 
with an over-supply of housing as there would need to be additional housing 
provided in future years. 

 All the saved policies from the previous Local Plan had been replaced with the 
exception of Grove Airfield which continued to be saved. 

 Officers were not aware of any anticipated changes in the level of housing need as 
a consequence of Brexit. 

 The Council worked closely with the County Council to look at the impact of 
proposals and make best use of existing and future public transport provision to 
reduce congestion on major roads. 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Wednesday, 20 September 2017  Sc.3 

 Whilst the Local Plan sought to identify and meet the need for housing, the cost 
(and affordability) of this housing was determined by the market. 

 The Local Plan took into account the designations of land such as Green Belt when 
determining housing need. 

 No changes had been made to the safeguarding of land for strategic highway 
improvements within the Abingdon-0n-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area. 

 As far as officers were aware, the County Council had no plans to relocate the 
proposed Lodge Hill Park and Ride to Dalton Barracks. 

 The Local Plan did not specify which housing developments would meet Oxford 
City’s unmet housing need.  However, the County and City Councils had agreed 
that North Abingdon sites were suitable to meet this need. 

 The costs of the Local Plan process were being monitored. 
 
During further discussion, the Committee agreed that: 

 The section on spatial standards required further clarification; 

 The numbering of the core policies needed checking; 

 Sufficient land needed to be safeguarded to enable a viable public transport and 
cycle link between Dalton Barracks and the Lodge Hill Park and Ride site; 

 Appendix I: Registered Parks and Gardens should be reviewed to ensure that all 
registered parks and gardens were listed; 

 Appendices N and O needed to be completed; and 

 Officers should review the Sustainable Transport Study to ensure consistency with 
the Local Plan. 

 
The Committee also agreed to request officers to: 

 Circulate information on recent traffic studies to Committee members; and 

 Submit a report to a future meeting, after the Local Plan Examination, on the costs 
of the process. 

 
RESOLVED:  
(a) to advise Cabinet that: 

 the section on spatial standards as set out in Chapter 3 of the Local Plan requires 
further clarification; 

 the numbers of the core policies need to be checked to ensure that they are correct; 
 further consideration should be given to ensuring that sufficient land is safeguarded 

to enable a viable public transport and cycle link between Dalton Barracks and the 
Lodge Hill Park and Ride site; 

 Appendix I: Registered Parks and Gardens should be reviewed to ensure that all 
registered parks and gardens and, in particular, Elizabeth Diamond Jubilee sites are 
included; 

 Appendices N & O need to be completed; and 

 officers should review the Sustainable Transport Study to ensure consistency with 
the Local Plan. 

  

(b) to request officers to: 
 circulate information on recent traffic surveys to Committee members; and 

 report to a future meeting, after the Local Plan Examination, on the costs of the 
process. 

 

(c) to thank the officers for all their hard work and, in particular, for producing 
     a Local Plan in plain English. 
 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Wednesday, 20 September 2017  Sc.4 

Sc.15 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings  

 
The committee considered its work programme and agreed: 
 

 To assign dates to previously unscheduled items; and 

 That, prior to an item coming to Scrutiny, members identify particular 
issues/information to be included in the report and who should be invited to attend. 

 
An updated work programme would be circulated prior to the next meeting. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.10 pm 
 
 

Page 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 28 September 2017  Sc.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

held on Thursday, 28 September 2017 at 7.00 pm 
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 
4SB  
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present:  
 
Members: Councillors Debby Hallett (Chairman), Alice Badcock (Vice-Chairman), 
Mike Badcock,  Ed Blagrove, Chris Palmer, Judy Roberts, Sandy Lovatt, Robert Hall (In 
place of Vicky Jenkins) and Katie Finch (In place of Mohinder Kainth) 
 

Officers: Andrew Down, Dylan Evans, Paul Howden, William Jacobs, Suzanne Malcolm, 
Ian Matten, Jo Paterson and Ron Schrieber 
 
Also present: Councillors Matthew Barber, Charlotte Dickson and Robert Sharp. Simon 
Hewings, Chief Accountant (Capita) 
 
 

 

Sc.16 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillors Mohinder Kainth (substituted by Katie Finch) and Vicky Jenkins 
(substituted by Robert Hall) submitted apologies. 
 

Sc.17 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2017 were agreed as an accurate record 
and were signed by the Chairman. 
 

Sc.18 Declarations of interest  
 
Councillors Sandy Lovatt and Robert Hall declared that as chairman and a member 
of the Planning Committee respectively that would be considering a planning 
application for West Way, Botley in the near future, they would be stepping down 
from the committee and leaving the room for Agenda item 26. 
 

Sc.19 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  
 
None. 
 

Sc.20 Public participation  
 
None. 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 28 September 2017  Sc.2 

 

Sc.21 Performance review of The Beacon, Wantage  
 
The committee considered the report of the interim head of waste, leisure, parks and 
environmental health which updated the committee on the actions taken in response 
to its recommendations from September 2016, set out progress towards The 
Beacon’s 2017/18 targets and requested the committee to make further performance 
improvement suggestions to the Cabinet member for leisure. 
 
Councillor Charlotte Dickson introduced this item. Also present to answer members’ 
questions were Ian Matten, interim head of waste, leisure, parks and environmental 
health, Dylan Evans, leisure manager, and Jo Paterson, Partnership Development 
Officer. 
 
The report set out the key performance indicators for 2016/17: 

 increase in revenue and a reduction in the overall operating deficit 

 increase in occupancy with more people using the venue more often 

 attract new audiences and users 

 improve the customer experience to ensure repeat business 

 raise awareness of the facility and improve communication 
 

Income had increased from £201,210 in 2015/16 to £214,864 in 2016/17.  However, 
expenditure had also increased, primarily as a result of booking higher profile 
performers which in turn created the increase in income.  Overall there was a slight 
increase in the operating deficit. 
 
In response to members’ questions, it was reported that: 

 It was unlikely that The Beacon would ever be self-sufficient. The aim was to 
reduce the operational deficit year on year whist attracting as many people as 
possible and ensuring that the venue was a community facility.  

 The average cost per occupied hour had reduced significantly since 2012/13 

 Occupancy figures were based on the number of hours that the venue was 
booked rather than the numbers attending. 

 The largest cost was staffing followed by business rates. 

 The Beacon was looking to increase secondary spend i.e. selling drinks and 
food to people attending events. 

 A number of energy saving measures had been implemented in recent years. 
 
The committee welcomed the report and the efforts made to reduce the operating 
deficit whilst ensuring that The Beacon continued to serve as an asset to the 
community.  It was agreed that next year’s report should include information on 
operating costs and income.  
 
RESOLVED: to 
 

1. Note The Beacon’s performance against targets. 
 

2. Request that next year’s performance review include information on: 

 Income and expenditure budgets; 

 Environmentally friendly and energy saving measures; and 

 The Beacon’s role as a community asset. 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 28 September 2017  Sc.3 

 

Sc.22 Financial outturn 2016/17  
 
The committee considered the report of the head of finance/chief accountant 
(Capita) on the final year end position for revenue and capital expenditure against 
budget for the financial year 2016/17. 
 
Simon Hewings, chief accountant (Capita), introduced this item. Also present to 
answer questions were Councillor Robert Sharp, Cabinet member for finance, and 
William Jacobs, head of finance. 
 
With regard to revenue, Table 5 of the report showed a £1.5million variance in 
expenditure in 2016/17. Excluding housing benefit, the majority of the variance was 
due to over achievement of income.  £510,000 of the income variance related to 
unbudgeted additional grant income for Didcot Garden Town. Other variances in 
income and expenditure were detailed in the report and appendices but, when Didcot 
Garden Town and carry forwards were excluded, the difference between the 
budgeted and actual revenue outturn was only £111,000. 
 
Capital expenditure for 2016/17 was £5.0 million, a variance of £1.4 million against 
the approved programme for the year. There was, however, slippage of £8 million of 
capital schemes from 2016/17 to future years. 
 
During further discussion, the committee noted the reasons given by the Cabinet 
member and officers for the slippage of specific capital projects. However, concern 
was expressed about the overall amount of slippage and, in particular, slippage in 
development and housing capital schemes. 
 
The committee noted the accuracy of the budget forecast and welcomed the fact that 
there had been an under achievement of forecast income on temporary 
accommodation due to a reduction in demand. 
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
1. Note the overall financial outturn position of the council in 2016/17 as well as the 

outturn of individual service areas. 
 
2. Request the interim head of development, regeneration and housing attend a 

future meeting to report on the reasons for the delay in implementing his service’s 
capital schemes 

 
3. Welcome the under achievement of income on temporary accommodation due to 

a reduction in demand. 
 

4. Congratulate the officers on the accuracy of the budget forecast. 
 

Sc.23 Council tax reduction scheme 2016/17  
 
The committee considered the head of finance’s report on the effect of the council 
tax reduction scheme (CTRS) on council taxpayers during 2016/17. 
 

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 28 September 2017  Sc.4 

Paul Howden, Revenues and Benefits Client Manager, introduced this item. Also 
present to answer questions were Councillor Robert Sharp, Cabinet member for 
finance, and William Jacobs, head of finance. 
 
In response to members’ questions, the committee was informed that: 

 Reducing claimants’ entitlement had reduced the scheme costs.  To date the 
current predicted savings were approximately £134,000 to be apportioned 
between the council, Oxfordshire County Council and the Thames Valley 
Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC). This figure was lower than originally 
anticipated, due to the CTRS caseload reducing significantly over the last two 
years which meant that more residents were paying council tax 

(NB: The actual apportioned savings were subsequently confirmed as: 
Oxfordshire County Council   £104,638 
Thames Valley PCC   £ 13, 415 
Vale of White Horse (inc Parishes)  £ 16,098 

      £134,151 
 

 Only two Discretionary Hardship Fund applications had been received in 
2016/17 with one applicant awarded £83. The number of potential applicants 
was limited as applications could only be considered from council taxpayers 
who were resident at a property as at 31 March 2014 and had been affected 
by the changes to the CTRS. 
 

RESOLVED: to 
 
1. Note the report: and  
 
2. Request that a further update be submitted to the committee in a year’s time; the 

report to include details of the savings apportioned to the council, Oxfordshire 
County Council and the Thames Valley Police and Crime Commissioner in 
2017/18. 

 

Sc.24 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings  

 
An updated work schedule had been tabled and was noted. 
 
With regard to items coming to the committee in the next few months, the committee 
identified particular issues/information to be included in the reports and who should 
be invited to attend. 
 

Sc.25 Exclusion of the public  
 
RESOLVED: to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  

i. it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, 
and 

ii. the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 28 September 2017  Sc.5 

 

Sc.26 West Way, Botley  
 
Councillors Sandy Lovatt and Robert Hall, chairman and a member of the Planning 
Committee respectively, stepped down from the committee and left the room for this 
item. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the report of the head of corporate services. 
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.50 pm 
 
 

Page 12



  

 

Scrutiny committee report 
 

  
Report of Interim Head of Waste, Leisure and Environmental Health 

Author: Ben Border 

Telephone: 01235 422203 

Textphone users add 18001 before you dial 
 
E-mail: ben.border@southandvale.gov.uk  

Cabinet  members responsible: Charlotte Dickson (Leisure)  

Tel:  01235 767848 

E-mail: charlotte@leahouse.com  

To: Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 26 October 2017 

 

 

 

New Leisure Centre for Wantage and 

Grove area  

Recommendation 

The committee is invited to: 

 make observations on the public consultation summary report and its findings 

 comment upon the proposed facility mix for the new leisure centre for Wantage 
and Grove area 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To report to Scrutiny Committee the results of the recent public consultation on 
proposals for a new leisure centre for the Wantage and Grove area.  The draft 
public consultation summary report is included in this paper as appendix A1.  The 
report contains a summary of the online survey results, comments and the 
feedback received during the consultation with stakeholders including Town and 
Parishes, Swim England and other National Governing Bodies on the proposals for 
the new leisure centre. 

2. The online survey results will be considered in the next stage of the project (RIBA 
work stage 3 – detailed design) and it will be determined, if required, whether they 

                                            
1 The online survey closed at midnight on Wednesday 4 October.  The full report is currently being 
finalised and will follow shortly.  

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:ben.border@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:charlotte@leahouse.com


  

 

can be incorporated into the design when considering the practical and financial 
limitations of the overall project. 

3. Additionally, the report sets out the proposed facility mix for the new leisure centre 
to be authorised by the cabinet member with responsibilities for leisure via an 
Individual Cabinet Member Decision.  

Strategic Objectives  

4. The delivery of a new leisure centre for the Wantage and Grove area supports the 
Council’s Corporate Plan (2016-2020) of sustainable communities and wellbeing.  
By building a new leisure centre at Grove we will increase participation in sport and 
leisure. 

Background 

5. The draft leisure and sports facility strategy (2012-2029) completed in 2012, 
identified the future leisure provision in the Wantage and Grove area as its highest 
priority.  This provision took into account the identified strategic housing sites 
within the locality; Monks Farm, Crab Hill and the former Airfield site, west of 
Grove.  

6. The 2012-2016 corporate plan, ‘Vision for the Vale’, identified as one of its 
priorities that officers “review the potential for building a new leisure centre in the 
Wantage and Grove area as Wantage expands”.  Therefore, officers appointed 
leisure consultant, Nortoft, to carry out an initial feasibility study.  Nortoft had 
already produced the draft leisure and sports facility strategy for the Vale of White 
Horse District Council and was familiar with the issues in the district, and Wantage 
and Grove in particular.  The draft feasibility study concluded that the following four 
options were available to provide a long-term solution for leisure provision within 
the area: 

 refurbishment and extension of the existing leisure centre to include a learner 
pool  

 rebuilding the leisure centre adjacent to the existing location within the King 
Alfred’s Academy site  

 building a new leisure centre within the Grove Airfield development  

 building a new leisure centre on the council-owned site in Mably Way.  
 

Preferred option 

7. Preference was expressed by cabinet members for investigating the Mably Way 
site, although they did not want to dismiss any option at that early stage.  Officers 
considered the risks and issues associated with each of the alternative options 
proposed and recommended to cabinet members that detailed feasibility work 
should be carried out on the preferred option of constructing a new leisure centre 
on the Mably Way site.  

8. To align with the emerging local plan The Vale of White Horse ‘Leisure and Sports 
Facilities Study’ was further updated in 2014 up until 2031. This provided further 
evidence of both the existing and future needs and deficiencies for facilities for the 
Wantage and Grove area. 

Page 14



  

 

9. This report reiterated that the existing leisure centre at Portway, Wantage is 
already operating at full capacity and will be unable to meet any additional demand 
that new homes in the area will bring.  To address the number of homes expected 
to be built in the area by 2031 the council identified the importance of delivering 
key infrastructure to meet the growing demand.   

10. The study identified core facilities required to satisfy the identified facility needs 
within a ten mile radius of the Wantage and Grove area, both now and in the future 
(up to 2031) and to meet the indoor and outdoor (artificial grass pitch) provision.  

11. The council commissioned The Sports Consultancy (TSC) in 2015 to complete an 
options appraisal and business case.  TSC tested the impact of the core facility mix 
identified through the ‘Leisure and Sports Facilities Studies’ and reviewed this mix 
by adding and removing facilities.  This included as one of the options to retain the 
existing leisure centre.  The report considered capital costs, revenue and 
affordability implications, as well as non-financial implications (e.g. meeting local 
need). 

12. An overall approved capital growth bid of £18.803million was allocated to support 
the delivery of the new leisure facility at the Vale-owned Mably Way property in 
Grove.   

13. During the previous two stages of the project the design team (Saunders Boston 
architects) have consulted with a variety of council internal departments to 
determine the requirements for the new leisure facility and to start informing the 

design.  These included leisure, planning, sustainability and equalities2.   

14. Consultation with external organisations such as GLL (existing leisure 
management operator) and national governing bodies (Sport England, Swim 
England and Berks & Bucks FA) has also taken place. This has further developed 
the brief for the proposed facility mix for the leisure centre and the resulting 
conceptual design, illustrated by site and floor plans that were used during the 
consultation.  

Public engagement and consultation 

15. During September and October 2017 there have been two phases of consultation 
on the proposals for a new leisure centre for the Wantage and Grove area.   

Phase one – 1-2-1 stakeholder sessions 
 
16. The council sought the views of key stakeholders with an interest in the existing 

leisure centre at Portway, Wantage and the proposed new leisure centre at Mably 
Way, Grove during September and October 2017.  This involved 1-2-1 meetings 
with representatives from various groups that had connections to the project, as 
well as informal workshops with local community groups to exhibit the proposal 
and raise awareness of the public online survey.  A full list of the invited 
stakeholders and groups engaged during this process is included as an 
appendices in the public consultation summary report. 

17. Discussions with these stakeholders demonstrated there was an overall 
enthusiasm for improving the leisure provision in the area.  The stakeholders 

                                            
2 Equalities to consider inclusive design in order to meet the needs of all users 

Page 15



  

 

considered that the proposals would enhance the leisure provision in the area and 
provide a popular attraction for local residents and visitors.   

18. Discussion about the size of individual activity areas, layout of the site, floor plans 
and the access to the Mably Way property created some diverse opinion as to how 
these should be provided.  Feedback will be considered, along with the online 
survey results, to determine if there need for these to be incorporated into the 
design when also considering the practical and financial limitations of the overall 
project.  

Engagement with Young People 
 
19. The council’s young person’s officer along with the leisure team undertook further 

engagement with young people.  Officers consulted with over 100 young people 
from Sweatbox (youth club), Fitzwaryn School and students from King Alfred’s 
Academy in Wantage.  A summary of the findings from these sessions is included 
as an appendix in the public consultation summary report. 

Phase Two – Public online survey  
 
20. A public drop in event took place at Wantage leisure centre (Portway, Wantage) on 

Thursday 7 September between 08.00 and 20.00 to launch the online survey and 
to allow the public to meet the design team and council officers to discuss the 
proposals being put forward.  A second event was held on Thursday 21 September 
between 15.00 and 20.00, at The Old Mill, Grove to provide a further opportunity 
for the public to see and discuss the plans with the project team.   

21. Officers held an open public session on Monday 18 September from 18.30 to 
20.30, to coincide with the regular disabled swimmers, to capture feedback on the 
current facilities and those being proposed at Mably Way. 

22. 624 people responded to the online survey which ran from 7 September to 4 
October 2017.   

Communication strategy 
 
23. The council promoted both the online survey and public drop in events using a 

wide variety of methods, including:  

  public drop in events at Wantage leisure centre and The Old Mill, Grove 

  e-shot to all existing GLL members of Wantage Leisure Centre (1,400 
members on their database) 

  email Invite to Vale Disability Access Group for the Inclusion session and link 
for online survey 

  email online survey link to the Vale’s Corporate Consultation mailing list (800 
signed up to receive surveys) 

  social media  

Facebook advertising – public drop in event reached over 5,600 people; drop in 
session reminder reached 5,200; and consultation open reach 5,500 

Page 16



  

 

Twitter – 15 tweets before and during the consultation achieving over 23,000 
impressions (appeared on people’s time line)  

  press releases leading to articles in local media (Herald series newspaper 
and Oxford mail) 

  local radio (Jack FM) announcements 

  leaflets and posters delivered for display in key public areas and local 
businesses in both the town centre and village shops throughout Wantage 
and Grove 

  dedicated webpage for the project 

  posted letters to over 200 homes adjacent to Mably Way to inform about the 
drop in events and online survey.   

Headline summary of online survey results 
 
24.  84 per cent of respondents expressed agreement in principle with the proposal to 

build a new leisure centre.  Only seven per cent disagreed with the development 
(Figure 1). 

 

Figure 1 

 
25. 70 per cent of respondents agreed with the location of Mably Way, Grove for the 

proposed location of the new leisure centre.  17 per cent didn’t have a strong 
preference and 12 per cent disagreed (figure 2). 

        Figure 2 
 

Page 17



  

 

26. The consultation also asked respondents which facilities they would use and which 
of those facilities would benefit the community most. Figure 3 illustrates the results 
to this question.  Of the people surveyed the main pool was the highest ranked 
facility at 70 per cent indicating that they would personally use at the new facility.  
The highest ranked facilities that would benefit the community included the learner 
pool (76 per cent), artificial grass pitch and sports hall (both 69 per cent).  

Figure 3 

 
27. 53 per cent of respondents agreed with the concept design of the new leisure 

centre.  29 per cent didn’t show a strong preference and 16 per cent disagreed 
(figure 4). 

Figure 4 

 
 
28. 68 per cent of respondents agreed with the proposed funding for the new leisure 

centre.  19 per cent didn’t show a strong preference and 11 per cent disagreed 
(figure 5). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 18



  

 

Figure 5 

 
Key Findings 
 
29. The respondents expressed an array of views in the free comments box provided.  

These ranged from additional facilities that should be provided to how the monies 
could be spent on other infrastructure for the area.   

Swimming Pool provision 
 
30.  A number of respondents raised their concerns at the proposed main pool being a 

25 metre six lane community pool.  Respondents would like to see the new facility 
deliver either a 50 metre pool or a 25 metre eight lane competition pool.   

31. Following work on the leisure and sport strategies completed in 2014 officers 
engaged with Swim England (formally known as the Amateur Swimming 
Association) to discuss projects in the pipeline and discuss a facility strategy 
moving forward in both districts.  

32. These discussions concluded that the South East Region, in which both authorities 
are located, the 50 metre pool provision is already established and that the Vale of 
White Horse falls within the orbit of Wycombe leisure centre.   

33. The council already provides a county competition pool at the White Horse Tennis 
and Leisure Centre with a 25 metre eight lane pool.  The council intend to establish 
this facility as the competition hub for swimming in both districts.  Swim England 
are supportive of this strategy and agree with the new leisure centre at Wantage 
and Grove being a community pool, which can be used by clubs for training.  

34. Swim England would welcome the addition of a moveable floor as this will increase 
and extend the swimming programme at the new facility and offer a more varied 
programme for all users.  Officers would recommend the movable floor for 
incorporation into the design when considering the practical and financial 
limitations of the overall project.  

Mably Way Health Centre 
 
35. 58 separate respondents commented on issues relating to the expansion of the 

Mably Way health centre and didn’t want the new leisure centre stopping the 
health centre being able to expand in the future to meet the growth in the area.   

 

Page 19



  

 

36. The press reported on Wednesday 6 September that the health centre practices 
had previously defeated plans to build a care home on part of the site to protect 
their own expansion.  The proposed leisure centre is on Vale-owned land and 
doesn’t encroach on the land earmarked by the health centre for further expansion.  
An agreed joint statement should be considered with the two practices to this 
effect.    

Existing leisure centre destination/usage for community  
 
37. The future of the existing Wantage leisure centre was raised by a number of 

consultees and those responding to the online survey.  People were keen to 
understand how it would be managed in the future and if the community could 
continue to access this facility following the opening of the new leisure centre at 
Mably Way.   

38. The council has over 80 years remaining on the lease of which it is joint tenant with 
Oxfordshire County Council (OCC).  The landlord is the Educational Trust of King 
Alfred’s School, Wantage.  There is a Joint User Agreement between the Vale 
Council, OCC and King Alfred’s Academy (part of the Vale Academy Trust).   

39. The new leisure centre’s core facilities required to satisfy the identified facility 
needs within the Wantage and Grove area, both now and in the future (up to 2031) 
are based on retaining continued community use of the existing dry facilities at 
Portway, Wantage.  

40. The Vale of White Horse ‘Leisure and Sports Facilities Study’ evidences that based 
on the current proposed housing growth in Vale there is insufficient demand to 
justify retaining community use of the existing pool.   

41. Work is continuing to investigate options for the existing leisure centres future uses 
and identifying the best value outcome for the council and its partners.  In 
concluding the options, and with Cabinets agreement, it is anticipated that there 
will be additional cost to Vale Council and will be subject to a separate growth bid.   

Outside Vale’s and project scope 

42. There were a number of concerns raised by respondents that do not fall under the 
responsibilities for the council.  These included the condition of the existing roads 
and pathway within and around the Wantage and Grove area, loss of bus services 
to and from the surrounding villages and provision for other infrastructure.  

Reporting of public consultation findings 

43. The final public consultation summary report will be made available on the 
webpage for the project.  This will provide comments and conclusions following the 
analysis of the survey.  The report will also provide details on the projects next 
steps and how interested residents can remain updated with the project’s 
development and key milestones.  

Proposed Final Facility Mix 

44.  Officers will recommend that the following core facility mix is taken forward for the 
detailed design stage of the project and that the design team further consider the 
additional facilities listed and investigate the enhancements that resulted from the 

Page 20



  

 

public consultation process and those developed in the early stages of the project, 
all within the constraints of the existing capital budget allocated for the project. 

Core offering     

Main pool – 25 metre six lane community pool 

Learner pool  

Sports Hall (equivalent to four badminton courts) 

Health and Fitness provision 

Studio Spaces (multi use areas) 

Artificial Grass Pitch provision 

 
Design team to consider further in Stage 3 (Detailed design) 

  
Moveable floor in the learner pool 

Multi climbing wall experience 

Confidence water 

Coffee shop 

 

Financial Implications 

45. The Capital budget allocated to the new leisure centre project is £18.803 million.  
The plans presented during the public consultation are conceptual designs based 
on the council’s requirements to the existing and future leisure needs for the area.  

46. Not all the facility enhancements being sought by the respondents are achievable 
within the existing property location and the budget allocated for the project.  As 
such the design team and officers will carefully consider these during the next 
design stage for the project.   

47. Officers are required to bring the project within the allocated budget.  If necessary, 
if it is agreed that enhancements that were identified outside the original project 
brief should be included, then officers will bring forward a growth bid to meet 
additional costs associated with these enhancements and those being considered 
in the sustainability strategy for the leisure centre on an invest to save basis. 

48. Any future costs associated with the existing leisure centre will be subject to a 
separate growth bid following the work to determine best value for its future uses.  

Legal Implications 

49. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Page 21



  

 

Risk management 

50. It will be important to manage expectations of the residents of Wantage, Grove and 
the surrounding area.  The site and budget constraints will limit the enhancements 
that have been sought through the public consultation.  

Project next steps 

51. The project team will be moving to the next RIBA work stage, Detailed Design, 
which include the outline specifications, structural design, building services 
systems.  Activity for this stage also include applying for planning permission, 
appointment of the main contractor for the construction and the eventual leisure 
management operator of the new leisure centre. 

Conclusion 

52. The public consultation has endorsed the view that the proposed facility mix would 
be a welcome addition to the leisure provision for the area.  

53. Officers would welcome Scrutiny Committees views on the proposed final facility 
mix to be taken forward to the detailed design stage within the allocated budget 
and further enhancements identified following the consultation process to be 
considered by the design team. 

Background Papers 

 Vale of White Horse Sport and Leisure Facilities Strategy (2014) 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

Scrutiny Committee 

 
  
Report of Head of Planning  

Author: James Gagg  

Telephone: 07717 271902 

E-mail: james.gagg@southandvale.gov.uk 

Executive member responsible: Cllr Roger Cox  

Tel: 01367 243360 

E-mail:  roger.cox@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: Vale Scrutiny Committee  

DATE: 26 October 2017 

 

 

 

OXFORD TO CAMBRIDGE EXPRESSWAY: VALE 
OPTIONS 

 

Recommendation 

That the committee consider the current evidence on Expressway options 
presented, and give their views or preferences on these proposals for further 
consideration by the Cabinet member and to help inform any further officer 
discussion with the NIC or Highways England. 

 

 
Introduction 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to give an update on the progress of the 

National Infrastructure Commission; Oxford to Cambridge Expressway 
(O2C) proposals, and ask scrutiny members for their view on the emerging 
potential routes in Oxfordshire. 
 

2. It is suggested that any views are fed back to the Cabinet member to 
ensure they are taken account of in any further discussions with the 
National Infrastructure Commission (NIC) or Highways England (HE) on 
these proposals. 

 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 

Background and Outline of Process to Date 
 
3. The Government asked the NIC for proposals and options to maximise the 

O2C corridor as a single, knowledge intensive cluster that is globally 
competitive while protecting the high-quality environment and securing 
much needed homes and jobs.  
 

4. The Government has set aside £27m to fund the O2C Expressway Study, 
which is a 130 mile long corridor covering 3,900 square miles with a 
population of 3.3m people of which, approximately 1.83m are employed 
and contributes £90.5bn to the UK economy.  It will connect the M4 to the 
M11, crossing the M1 and A1(M). 
 

5. An outline of the NIC work to date is set out below in three sections: 

 
Early development culminating in Stage 3 report; November 2016 

 
6. Proposals for the Oxford to Cambridge expressway have been developing 

over the last three years, with the ‘strategic study’ being part of the Roads 
Investment strategy (2015-2020) published in November 2014 with the 
following key objective: 

 
‘The strategic objective of the Oxford to Cambridge Expressway study is to 
investigate the case for linking existing roads and creating an Oxford to 
Cambridge Expressway, which would provide a high quality strategic east-
west road link between Oxford and Cambridge via Bedford and Milton 
Keynes, improving connectivity, building network resilience and supporting 
economic growth’ 
 

7. The Expressway in this study is believed to mean a dual carriageway with 
limited access points and where junctions do exist they will be slip roads to 
allow free flow of traffic. The route could also be a corridor for other means 
of transport, such as electric vehicles. It is understood that the A34 would 
be upgraded from the M4 and continue into the Expressway.  
 

8. The Stage 3 report on this study was published in November 2016 by the 
Department for Transport (DfT), which summarised the work undertaken in 
2015/ 2016.1  The main conclusions from the study were the identification 
of potential core route options as follows: 

 

A. a northern option, roughly following the existing A421 to the south of 
Bicester and via Buckingham to the east of Milton Keynes (Route A) 

B. a central option, following the east-west rail corridor (Route B); and 

C. a southern option via Aylesbury, linking to the M1 south of Milton 
Keynes (Route C) 

 

                                            
1 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxford-to-cambridge-expressway-strategic-
study-stage-3-report 

Page 24



 

These routes are shown in the report on key schematic diagrams, 
Appendix 1 (two diagrams; 1. Wire diagram, 2. Arcs diagram). 
 

9. The Stage 3 report focused on the strategic economic and transport case 
for expressway road improvements, and did not go into any detail on 
environmental or social impacts. 

 
10.  Each of the main routes (A-C) could align with routes to the west or south 

of Oxford.  However, the southern route option (Route C) is likely to be 
more clearly linked to a route south of Oxford, whilst the central and 
northern options (Routes A and B) could either route around the north and 
west of Oxford to re-join the A34, or route to the east and then South of 
Oxford. Alternatively, it could tie with upgrades to the existing A34 in the 
area. 

 
11. As well as the core routes, there are sub-options (Bicester to Abingdon), 

including a more southerly option linking to Route C which would re-join 
the A34 near Didcot rather than north of Abingdon as per the core route. 

 
12. Each of the routes were costed at approximately £3 to £3.5bn for delivery, 

but the report did not go into detail on the environmental and social 
impacts of different route options. 

 

Related NIC work happening in parallel 
 

13. Also in autumn 2016, the NIC published a report titled, ‘Cambridge - Milton 
Keynes - Oxford: Interim Report’ which set out the need to invest in 
infrastructure to support economic growth along the corridor and help 
deliver significant new levels of housing.2 
 

14. The report suggested that, within the O2C corridor, up to 1 million 
additional homes and 700,000 additional jobs could be delivered by 2050. 
This could give an estimated increase in gross value added (GVA) by 
£1.63bn. 

 
15. The report recommended £27m investment for more detailed work on the 

expressway, as well £100m towards the next stage of East-West Rail. This 
investment was announced in the 2016 Autumn budget. 

 
16. In addition, the NIC launched an ‘ideas competition’ in Summer 2017 with 

the aim ’to gather, showcase and promote imaginative responses to 
integrated place-making with the proposed infrastructure projects across 
the Cambridge-Milton Keynes-Oxford Corridor’. Four multi-disciplinary 
teams were shortlisted (Barton Willmore, Fletcher Priest Architects, Mae 
and Tibbalds Planning & Urban Design) to take forward more detailed 
concepts, with the winner to be announced in mid-November 2017, 
possibly linked to the Autumn budget.  The ‘ideas competition’ included 

                                            
2 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-national-infrastructure-commissions-
interim-report-into-the-cambridge-milton-keynes-oxford-corridor 

Page 25



 

background and a map (Appendix 2) showing indicative expressway 
options3. The NIC has just revealed the final four design concepts which 
can be viewed in short video form on the competition website and 
comments can be submitted. These concepts vary, but in summary largely 
include proposals for new or expanded settlements between Oxford and 
Cambridge, linked to sustainable transport improvements.  
 

Next Steps by NIC 
 

17. It is understood that a more detailed study will be published later this year, 
including a ‘Strategic Outline Business Case’ for the expressway proposal. 
A stakeholder workshop is scheduled for 18 October 2017, and it is 
anticipated that this will give more detail on the process being undertaken 
on route option identification and selection. Any further detail given will be 
fed back to councillors for their consideration. It is expected, subject to HE, 
Department for Transport and Treasury agreement, that any proposal will 
be included in the next Road Investment Strategy; 2020 to 2025. 

 

Considerations for the Vale 
 

18. As part of the NIC’s engagement with communities, Oxfordshire Leaders 
met with Lord Adonis (NIC Chairman) in July 2017. In addition, Leaders, 
Elected Mayors and Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Chairmen across 
the corridor (27 councils and 3 LEPs) responded to the last round of 
consultation and recognised that this is a ‘once in a generation opportunity’ 
of national importance and ‘are united in a shared ambition to capitalise 
powerfully on our area’s potential, both domestically and internationally, 
across a wide range of sectors where we lead markets and have identified 
opportunities for continued growth’. The response was not signed by the 
Vale council, although we did respond separately. 
  

19. Following this consultation, Cabinet considered the most up to date 
information on expressway options available in August 2017. As a result of 
this the Leader of the Vale of White Horse wrote to Lord Adonis to give his 
current view on the proposals. The letter is attached at Appendix 3. This 
includes some supporting plans that show officer interpretations of how 
route options around Oxford included in published Expressway or NIC 
reports could impact on the area to the South and West of Oxford. In the 
letter Cllr Barber states that he does not support any routes to the west of 
Oxford, or upgrades to the A34 in this location. Should any of the routes 
proposed to the south of Oxford be progressed, he notes that he would 
want further engagement on more detail, prior to any final 
recommendations being made.  

 
20. For scrutiny committee to make an informed view at this time, officers 

consider the following points are important to assess potential options: 
 

                                            
3 https://competitions.malcolmreading.co.uk/cambridgeoxfordconnection/ 

Page 26



 

 There is significant impetus behind infrastructure improvements on the 
Oxford - Milton Keynes - Cambridge corridor, particularly if it enables 
more homes and jobs. It’s happening whether we like it or not.  

 Significant new investment will start with the delivery of East- West rail 
which is relatively well advanced between Bicester (Oxford) and Milton 
Keynes and Bedford by 2024, and will then follow with parts of the 
Expressway.  

 It is not yet known when specific aspects of Expressway improvements 
could be delivered, with detail unlikely to emerge until the next Road 
Investment Strategy; 2020 to 2025. 

 Any of the existing proposed options identified around Oxford as shown 
in Appendices 1 and 2 and interpreted indicatively in the plans shown 
in Appendix 3 would have both positive and negative impacts on the 
Vale and its surrounding area. 

 The main negative impacts are likely to be related to potential 
environmental and landscape matters and also on Green Belt areas to 
the South & West of Oxford (depending on the option).  

 The main positive impacts are likely to be further mitigating the 
transport impacts of planned new development as proposed in local 
plans, the economic benefits of improved strategic accessibility and 
some air quality and pollution benefits on the existing A34 corridor to 
the west of Oxford if traffic flows are reduced through re-direction to 
alternative routes.  However, these benefits will vary depending on the 
route of the expressway around Oxford and the number and location of 
accesses to/ from the route. 

 If the route followed more tightly to the South or West of Oxford it is 
likely to have less linkage with proposed development, apart potentially 
from Dalton Barracks. If the route was closer to Didcot Garden Town/ 
the Science Vale area and those areas of proposed development in the 
central area of South Oxfordshire (including Culham) and included 
junctions to existing roads it could help mitigate this development and 
potentially reduce infrastructure spend for these sites/potential sites  

 If the route followed the existing A34 to the west of Oxford this would 
likely impact on existing settlements in the Botley/ North Hinksey area, 
and could route further traffic to areas already sensitive to air quality/ 
environmental impacts 

 
Conclusion 

 
21. The following conclusions on the expressway are suggested at this time: 
 

 There is significant national impetus behind proposals for an 
expressway, especially if it is seen as helping to deliver significantly 
more housing to support economic growth between Oxford and 
Cambridge. 

 The economic and transport case for improvements seem strong, but 
environmental impacts need to be considered further. 

 No routes have been specifically chosen, but there are a number of 
routes being considered, some of which would better link to the growth 

Page 27



 

proposals at Didcot Garden Town, Science Vale, and Enterprise Zones 
than others. 

 There is an opportunity for the committee to express a view on the core 
route options already proposed or the possible alternative route options 
for a South/West Oxford route. This can then be fed back to the 
Cabinet member and help inform any further officer discussion on 
expressway options. 
 

 

Appendices;  
Appendix 1. Figure from Stage 3 Expressway Report 
Appendix 2. Figure from NIC ‘ideas competition’ briefing note 
Appendix 3: Letter from Cllr Matt Barber to Lord Adonis, 31 August 2017, 
including associated supporting plans 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 28



 

 

 
Appendix 1: Schematic figure from Stage 3 Oxford to Cambridge 
Expressway Report, Nov 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 29



 

 

 
Appendix 2: Map (extract) showing Expressway Route Options from the 
‘ideas competition’ documentation, June 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk          

The Right Honourable, the Lord Adonis 
National Infrastructure Commission 
5th Floor, 11 Philpot Lane 
London 
EC3M 8UD 

Councillor Matthew Barber
Leader of the Council

councillor@matthewbarber.co.uk
Tel: 01235 422082 

135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park,
Milton, Abingdon OX14 4SB

Our reference: PE/V0330/17

31 August 2017 

Dear Lord Adonis   

Cambridge to Oxford Expressway 

To assist the Commission’s final report to Government later this autumn and 
following our last meeting in Oxford, I thought it helpful to write with my view on 
behalf of the Council regarding the emerging routes, particularly at the western end 
of the corridor, around Oxford. 

I do not support an upgrade of the existing A34 or an alternative route to the west 
and north of Oxford City (Indicative routes 4 & 5 on the attached plans) as we do not 
believe this will best deliver the outcomes sought by your commission and believe 
the environmental impacts, disruption to residents and existing housing would be 
prohibitive.   

However, if you are minded to recommend a route to the south of Oxford City for a 
new road, particularly indicative Routes 1 & 2 and their suggested slips (or potential 
alternative junctions) on the attached plans which seem the most logical, I would 
want our officers to engage with you and your colleagues for a constructive dialogue 
as soon as possible and before any final recommendation is made.  Please note that 
I oppose Route 3 as it cuts through the AONB. 

If the south of Oxford route materialises, then I am willing to participate in dialogue 
with my adjoining council, South Oxfordshire District Council and other Councils 
affected by the potential route, such as Aylesbury Vale District Council, and 
yourselves. 

Cont… 

Page 31



 
I hope this is helpful in your consideration of proposed routes and I look forward to 
hearing from you. 
 
 
Yours Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Matthew Barber    
Leader Vale of White Horse District Council 
 
 
 
Encl. 2no. Vale Plans; Indicative Potential Expressway routes 
 
 
 

. cc  Sajid Javid MP -  Secretary of State for Communities and local Government 
(Ministerial Champion for the Midlands Engine)  

Greg Clark MP -  Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy 

Layla Moran MP 
Ed Vaizey MP 

 

Page 32



© Crown Copyright and database rights 2017
Ordnance Survey 100019525

Potential Oxford to Cambridge Expressway Routes
- South/ West of Oxford and environmental constraints

0 1 2 3 40.5
Miles

Route 1
8 miles approx

Route 2
14 miles approx

Route 3
16 miles approx

O
Aug 2017

District Boundary
Sites of Special Scientific Interest
Ancient Woodland
Special Areas of Conservation
Scheduled Monuments
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty
Green Belt
Flood Zone 3
Flood Zone 2

Route 4
9 miles approx

Route 5
8 miles approx

Potential Expressway route options
- south of Oxford routes
Potential New Road Link 
Approximate Route past M40
Potential Major New Interchange
Potential new junctions
Potential Expressway route option
- west of Oxford route
Route 5 (existing route upgrade)

P
age 33



© Crown Copyright and database rights 2017
Ordnance Survey 100019525

Potential Oxford to Cambridge Expressway Routes
- South/ West of Oxford and planned/ potential 
 development sites

0 1 2 3 40.5
Miles

O
Aug 2017

Enterprise Zones
Employment Sites
Housing sites adopted in SODC Core Strategy 
South Local Plan Proposed Strategic Housing Sites
Vale Local Plan Part 1 Strategic Housing sites
Vale Local Plan Part 2 Proposed Strategic Housing Sites

Route 4
9 miles approx

Route 5
8 miles approx

Potential Expressway route options
- south of Oxford routes
Potential New Road Link 
Approximate Route past M40
Potential Major New Interchange
Potential new junctions
Potential Expressway route option
- west of Oxford route
Route 5 (existing route upgrade)

Route 1
8 miles approx

Route 2
14 miles approx

Route 3
16 miles approx

P
age 34



Scrutiny Review Scoping Template 
 

Review Topic 
 
(Name of Review) 

 

Task & Finish Group Members 
 
(Councillors involved) 

 

Officer Support 
(Principal Witness and Scrutiny 
Officer) 

 

Rationale 
 
(Key issues and/or reason for doing 
the review) 

 

Purpose/Objectives of the Review 
 
(What the review should achieve) 

 

Indicators of Success 
(Desired outcomes - what should 
change as a result) 

 

Methodology/Approach 
 
(What types of enquiry will be used to 
gather evidence) 

 

Witnesses/experts 
 
(who to see and when) 

 

Sources of Evidence 
 
(what is required and where will it 
come from) 

 

Site Visits 
(Where and when) 

 

Evidence Sources for Views of 
Stakeholders 
(Consultation/workshops/focus 
groups/public meetings) 

 

Resource Requirements 
(Person days, expenditure) 

 

Barriers/Dangers/Risks 
 
(Potential Pitfalls and weaknesses) 

 

 
Projected start 

date 

  
Draft Report due 

 

 
Meeting 

Frequency 

 Projected 
completion date 

 

 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



1 
17 October 2017 

Schedule for Scrutiny Committees 2017/18 

(further items to be added to schedule as required) 

Meeting 
date 

Council Agenda items Purpose of Report Cabinet members Report Author Head of Service Strategic 
Lead 

Thurs 9 
Nov 

Joint Five Council’s Partnership Update David Nimmo-
Smith/Robert Sharp 

Andrew Down Andrew Down  

Tues 28 
Nov 

South Corporate Delivery Plan – 
progress review 
 
 
CIL 
 
 

To scrutinise progress against 
the Corporate Delivery Plan 
 
 
To consider the draft strategy 
and comment on/make 
recommendations to Cabinet 

John Cotton 
 
 
 
John Cotton 
 
 

Sally Truman 
 
 
 
Cathie Scotting 
 
 

Adrianna 
Partridge 
 
 
Adrian Duffield 
 
 

 

Thurs 30 
Nov 

Vale Corporate Delivery Plan – 
progress review 
 
Oxfordshire Spatial Plan 
 
Planning procedures 
 
 
 
 
Housing build rates 
 

To scrutinise progress against 
the Corporate Delivery Plan 
 
 
 
To consider whether the new 
Planning Committee 
procedures achieve the 
intended objectives 
 
To monitor build rates as part 
of monitoring and contingency 
responsibilities of the Local 
Plan Part 1 

Matthew Barber 
 
 
Matthew Barber 
 
Roger Cox 
 
 
 
 
Roger Cox/Elaine 
Ware 

Sally Truman 
 
 
 
 
Emily 
Hamerton 
 
 
 
Andrew 
Maxted 

Adrianna 
Partridge 
 
Andrew Down 
 
Adrian Duffield 
 
 
 
 
Adrian 
Duffield/Gerry 
Brough 
 

 

Tues 5 
Dec 

Joint       

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 9



2 
17 October 2017 

Thurs 14 
Dec 

Vale Slippage of Development and 
Housing capital schemes 
 

To consider the reasons for the 
delay in implementing 
Development and Housing 
capital schemes and the steps 
being taken to address this 
matter 

Elaine Ware 
 

Gerry Brough Gerry Brough  

Tues 23 
Jan 

South “Ask the Leader” 
 
 

The Leader to answer 
members’ and the public’s 
questions 

John Cotton    

Thurs 25 
Jan 

Vale “Ask the Leader”  
 
 
 
Houses that people can afford 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Partnership grants 
 

The Leader to answer 
members’ and the public’s 
questions 
 
To consider what is being 
done/could be done to 
increase the number of houses 
for rent or sale that are truly 
affordable to the average 
working family or person 
 
To consider the criteria for 
grant funding organisations 

Matthew Barber 
 
 
 
Roger Cox/Elaine 
Ware 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Elaine Ware 

 
 
 
 
? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jayne Bolton 

 
 
 
 
Adrian 
Duffield/Gerry 
Brough 
 
 
 
 
 
Adrianna 
Partridge 

 

Tues 6 
Feb  

South Review of Final Draft Budget To consider and comment on 
the draft budget prior to its 
consideration by Council 

Jane Murphy William Jacobs William Jacobs  

Thurs 8 
Feb 

Vale Review of Final Draft Budget To consider and comment on 
the draft budget prior to its 
consideration by Council 
 

Robert Sharp William Jacobs William Jacobs  

P
age 37



3 
17 October 2017 

Tues 6 
March 

Joint Community Safety Partnership 
Annual Report 
 
 
 
 
 
Spend on commuted housing 
sums 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Review of Communications 
Strategy 
 

To update the committee on 
the progress that the South 
and Vale Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP) is making to 
reduce crime and the fear of 
crime 
 
To receive an annual report on 
the status of commuted sum 
payments received and 
expenditure to date, including 
measurable Key Performance 
Indicators. 
 
 
 
To monitor the effects of the 
Joint Communications Strategy  

Elizabeth 
Gillespie/Eric Batts 
 
 
 
 
 
Lynn Lloyd/ Elaine 
Ware 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John 
Cotton/Matthew 
Barber 

Liz Hayden 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Novelle 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Andy 
Roberts/Jayne 
Bolton 

Margaret Reed  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gerry Brough 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adrianna 
Partridge 
 
 

 

Tues 27 
March 

South       

Thurs 29 
March 

Vale       

Tues 29 
May 

South       

Thurs 31 
May 

Vale       

  

P
age 38



4 
17 October 2017 

Potential items for future meetings (date to be determined): 
For Joint Scrutiny 

 Unitary process   

 Science Vale Marketing campaign (first meeting of 2018/19 Municipal year) To receive an annual monitoring report on the success of the campaign (Mike 

Murray/ Robert Simister, Joy Kellaway, Gerry Brough 

 

For Vale Scrutiny 

 

Items for future South Scrutiny Committee (date to be determined): 

 Planning appeals 

 Staffing matters 
 
The Cabinet work programmes can be accessed via the following links: 
South 
http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0 
Vale 
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0 
 
Meeting Start times: Joint: 6:30; South: 6:30; Vale: 7.00; 5CP: tbc 

 

Scrutiny Work Item Preparation 
Members are invited to consider the following headings for future agenda items 

Item name 

Date of report to Committee  

What do we want to know about? What topics should the report provider include in their report to Scrutiny? 

Who to invite to Committee? (Cabinet member(s) and Head(s) of Service). Anyone from outside agencies?  

 

P
age 39

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 28/09/2017 Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes


	6 New leisure centre for Wantage and Grove area
	7 Oxford to Cambridge Expressway: Vale options
	Appendix 3-2017-08-31-Matthew Barber ltr to Lord Adonis Expressway
	Appendix 3- plan 1-2017-08-30_Vale-potential NIC Expressway routes - illustrative - Constraints Aug 2017
	Appendix 3- plan 2- 2017-08-30_Vale -potential NIC Expressway routes -illustrative LP sites Aug 2017

	8 Appointment of task group
	9 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings



